

**BYLAWS
OF
GRASSLAND ESTATES HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION
(As Amended Through June 15, 2004)**

ARTICLE I

Name and Offices

The name of the Corporation shall be Grassland Estates Homeowners' Association. The principal office of the Corporation shall be at such location within the City of Midland as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II

Statement of Purpose

The purposes for which this Corporation is formed are to provide for the lease or other acquisition of property for the benefit of the homeowners in the Grassland Estates subdivision in Midland, Texas and the construction, management, maintenance and care of corporation property for the benefit of such homeowners as set out in the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation and as those Articles may from time to time be amended, so long as all purposes of the Corporation fall within the list of acceptable purposes for a Section 528 corporation as those purposes are set forth in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto.

ARTICLE III

Members

Section 1. Classes of Members and Voting. The Corporation shall have one class of members. Each member (other than SBC Corporation) shall be entitled to cast one vote for each residential lot owned by that member, in person, on any matter required to be submitted to the members for voting under these Bylaws or under statute and on any other matter submitted to a vote of the members. In all cases, SBC Corporation shall be given three votes for each residential lot it owns at the time of the taking of such vote. Members shall not be entitled to vote by proxy. The act of a majority of the votes present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Corporation.

All references in these Bylaws to any vote or action to be taken by a "majority" of Directors or members, unless specified otherwise, shall mean a majority of one (1).

Section 2. Eligibility. The initial members of the Corporation shall consist of SBC Corporation and those other persons or entities owning a numbered tract or parcel of land embraced by any present or future plat of Grassland Estates, subdivision (exclusive of those portions of the Grassland Estates subdivision as may be specifically excluded by SBC Corporation) upon which residential buildings and appurtenances approved by the Corporation may be built (other than a licensed builder who does not own an occupied residence on such lot or tract) unless such owner purchased the lot prior to December 17, 1990 and has subsequent to that date executed an election to be excluded as a member of the Corporation. Any owner of more than one lot with one residence thereon (other than SBC Corporation) shall be considered to be the owner of one lot for the purposes of membership in the Corporation and for assessment. The foregoing is not intended to include persons or entities who hold an interest merely as security for the performance of an obligation. A membership in the Corporation shall not be transferred, pledged, or alienated in any way except on the sale of a member's property in the Grassland Estates subdivision (and then only to the purchaser

thereof), by intestate succession, testamentary disposition, foreclosure of mortgage of record or other legal process or by the relinquishment of membership upon the execution of an election to be excluded from the Corporation. Each record owner of property in the Grassland Estates subdivision (other than SBC Corporation) shall be entitled to one membership in the Corporation and one vote. Any joint owner shall designate to the Corporation in writing the name of the person entitled to vote said membership. At the discretion of the Board of Directors no certificates of membership need be issued, and if certificated are not issued, membership shall be evidenced by an official list of members kept by the Secretary of the Corporation.

Section 3. Termination of Membership. Any member who ceases to qualify for membership under the provisions of Section 2 of this Article shall automatically cease to be a member.

Section 4. Number of Members. The maximum number of members of the Corporation shall be unlimited.

ARTICLE IV

Meetings of the Corporation

Section 1. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the members of the Corporation, at which the members shall elect persons to serve on the Board of Directors, as hereinafter provided, and to transact such other business as may be placed before it, shall be held each year on such date as may be specified by the Board of Directors.

Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Corporation may be called by the President, and special meetings of the Corporation shall be held upon the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors then in office or upon the written request of no fewer than ten percent (10%) of the members of the Corporation.

Section 3. Time and Place. The Board of Directors shall designate the time and place of all meetings, annual and special, of the Corporation; provided, however, that all such meetings shall be held within the City of Midland or at such other place designated by the Board of Directors.

Section 4. Notices of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of members of the Corporation shall be given to each member by mailing the same not less than thirty (30) days before the date of the annual meeting and not less than ten (10) days prior to the special meeting of the Corporation. Each notice shall indicate the date, time and place of the meeting and the order of business to be considered.

Section 5. Quorum. At any annual meeting of the members of the Corporation, the presence of fifteen or more members eligible to vote at such annual meeting shall constitute a quorum. At any special meeting of the members of the Corporation, the presence of members holding ten percent (10%) of the votes eligible to vote at such meeting shall constitute a quorum. (As Amended on April 16, 2002)

ARTICLE V

Board of Directors

Section 1. General Powers. The activities, affairs and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by a Board of Directors who shall have and may exercise all the powers of the Corporation (including the power to enforce the Restrictions and Covenants applicable to Grassland Estates subdivision and to adopt rules and regulations setting forth the procedures to be

followed in connection with such enforcement) except as otherwise reserved to the member by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these Bylaws. (As amended on April 20, 1998)

Section 2. Number, Eligibility, Election and Term of Office. The Board of Directors shall consist of at least three (3), but not more than seven (7), Directors with the number of Directors making up the Board of Directors to be determined from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors.

Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected, as positions become vacant, at the annual meeting and (except as provided below) shall serve for three (3) year terms and thereafter until their successors have been elected and qualified.

Of those Directors identified in the Articles of Incorporation one (1) shall serve for three (3) years, one (1) shall serve for four (4) years and one (1) shall serve for five (5) years; this distinction to be made by agreement of such initial Directors and noted in the organizational minutes. Thereafter Directors shall be elected for three (3) year terms.

Section 3. Nominating Committee. Not less than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the annual meeting of the members at which a director or directors are to be elected, the President of the Corporation, with the approval of the Board of Directors, shall appoint a nominating committee consisting of at least three (3), but not more than five (5), members of the Corporation. The nominating committee shall select a candidate or candidates for election to membership on the Board of Directors, such candidate or candidates to be elected at the ensuing annual meeting.

The nominating committee shall obtain the consent of all candidates to having their names submitted for election at the annual meeting. The nominating committee shall, by a majority vote, submit to the Secretary of the Corporation, a written list of their nominees for Directors, which list shall be signed by the chairperson of the committee. Not less than thirty (30) days prior to the annual meeting, the Secretary shall announce the slate to all members of the Corporation, together with the notice of the annual meeting and notice of the nominating procedure as set forth in this Section 3. Any other member may nominate a candidate for Director by filing a petition containing the signatures of ten (10) members of the Corporation with the nominating committee at least fourteen (14) days prior to the annual meeting. All members will be notified in writing of all nominees at least five (5) days prior to the annual meeting. The list of candidates as developed by the nominating committee shall be presented by the Secretary to the annual meeting and shall, without motion or further proceedings, constitute a valid nomination of each of the persons listed therein as a nominee for Director. Except as submitted by the nominating committee or as submitted through petition in accordance with this Section 3, no nominations for Directors shall be entitled to be voted upon or otherwise considered at any annual meeting of members. Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected by majority vote of the members in attendance at the annual meeting.

Section 4. Resignation and Removal. Any Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board of Directors of his or her resignation. Unless indicated in such notice to the contrary, any such resignation shall be effective immediately upon its submission or transmission to the Secretary of the Board of Directors. Any Director may be removed as a Director by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors then in office, at any regular or special meeting called and convened for such purpose, when he or she no longer meets the criteria for membership in the Corporation, for conduct detrimental to the interests of the Corporation, for lack of sympathy with its objectives, or refusal to render reasonable assistance in carrying out those objectives. In addition, any Director who fails to attend three (3) consecutive meetings of the Board of Directors without sufficient excuse may be removed from the Board of Directors by a majority vote of those Directors present at any meeting at which such removal is to be voted upon. Any Director proposed to be removed, however, shall be entitled to at least ten (10) days notice, in writing and by mail, of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which time such removal is to be voted upon and shall be entitled to appear before and be heard by the Board of Directors at such meeting.

Section 5. Vacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Directors, howsoever existing or arising, shall be filled by the affirmative vote of the majority of all remaining Directors then in office. The Board shall act in order to assure that no vacancy exists for more than sixty (60) calendar days. A person elected to fill a vacancy shall be elected to serve the unexpired portion of the term of the person who preceded him or her in that position.

Section 6. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold a regular meeting for the purpose of organization, election of officers and the transaction of other business immediately following the annual meeting of members. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors will be held at such times as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors. All regular meetings shall be held within the City of Midland or at such other location designated by the Board of Directors and shall be open to all members of the Corporation.

Section 7. Special Meetings. The President or the Secretary may call a special meeting. Upon a written request by any three (3) Directors, the Secretary shall call a special meeting of the Board of Directors. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the principal office of the Corporation or at such other places as may be designated in the notice of such meeting. All special meetings shall be open to all members of the Corporation.

Section 8. Notice of Meetings. Notice of all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be given by mailing or telephoning the same at least five (5) days prior to the meeting, such notice to be directed to the usual business or residence address of the Director. Any business may be transacted at any meeting of the Board of Directors unless otherwise prohibited in these Bylaws. The attendance of a Director at a meeting shall constitute a waiver by him of notice of the meeting unless he attends only to object to the transaction of business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting by executing a written document before or after such meeting. The purpose of the meeting shall be specified in the notice of the meeting and in any waiver thereof.

Section 9. Chairperson. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors, unless the President is absent, in which event, the Vice President shall preside. If both the President and the Vice President are absent, a majority of the Directors then present shall elect a person to preside at the meeting.

Section 10. Quorum and Voting. The majority of the Board of Directors then in office shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business at any meeting of the Board. A vote of the Directors shall be valid only if taken at a meeting of the Directors at which a quorum is present at the time the vote is taken, or if the vote is taken pursuant to Section II of this Article. No Director may vote by proxy. The act of the majority of the Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. If less than a majority of the Directors are present at a meeting, a majority of those present may adjourn the meeting to another date and time without the necessity of fulfilling the five (5) day notice requirement set out in Section 8 of this Article.

Section 11. Informal Action of Directors. Any action required by law or by these Bylaws to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if a written document of consent setting forth the action taken is signed by all the Directors then in office.

Section 12. Compensation. The officers and Directors shall serve without compensation, but reasonable expenses incurred may be reimbursed when expended for and in the interest of the Corporation and approved by the Board of Directors by a majority vote.

Section 13. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors then in office, designate two (2) or more (not to exceed five (5)) Directors to constitute an Executive Committee, which

committee shall have and may exercise all such authority of the Board of Directors as shall be provided in such resolution.

Section 14. Other Committees. The Board of Directors may, by resolution adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors then in office, establish and later modify, at any time, such other committees as the needs of the Board of Directors or the Corporation may require. Committee members shall be appointed by the President, subject to the approval of a majority of the Board of Directors. Each such committee shall consist of two (2) or more persons and, in the case of those committees having and exercising the authority of the Board of Directors, the majority of such members shall also be Directors of the Corporation. The Board may delegate to any such committee some or all of its powers except those which by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws may not be delegated.

The business of each committee shall be conducted, as far as is possible, in the same manner as is provided in these Bylaws for the Board of Directors. All members of such committees may be removed by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors then in office. Removal shall be governed by the notice and hearing requirements of Section 4 of this Article. The Board of Directors may abolish any such committee at any time. Every committee shall keep a record of business consistent with the office of the committee and the responsibilities as may be assigned to it from time to time by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VI

Officers

Section 1. Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, and such other officers as may be elected in accordance with the provisions of this Article. The Board of Directors may elect or appoint such other officers as it shall deem desirable, such officers to possess the authority and perform the duties prescribed, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person, except the offices of President and Secretary.

Section 2. Election, Term of Office and Qualification. The officers of the Corporation shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors at the regular annual meeting of the Board of Directors. If the election of the officers shall not be held at such meeting, the election shall be held as soon thereafter as may be conveniently accomplished. New offices may be created and filled at any meeting of the Board of Directors. Each officer shall hold office until his successor shall have been duly elected and shall have qualified. Officers of the Corporation may also serve the Corporation as Directors concurrently with their service as officers.

Section 3. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, disqualification or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors for the unexpired portion of the term.

Section 4. President. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Corporation and shall in general supervise and control all of the business and affairs of the Corporation. He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors. The President may sign, with the Secretary or any other proper officer of the Corporation authorized by the Board of Directors, any contracts or other instrument which the Board of Directors has authorized to be executed, except in cases where the signing and execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors or by these Bylaws or by statute to some other officer or agent of the Corporation; and in general, he or she shall perform all duties incident to the office of Chairman and such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Section 5. Vice President. At the request of the President, or in the event of the President's absence or disability, the Vice President shall perform the duties and possess and exercise

the powers of the President and shall have such other duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

Section 6. Secretary. The Secretary shall have charge of such books, documents and papers as the Board of Directors may determine. The Secretary or a designee shall attend and keep the minutes of all meetings of the Corporation and the Board of Directors, and shall keep an up-to-date record containing the names, alphabetically arranged, of all persons who are members of the Corporation, showing their places of residence. Such books shall be open for inspection at all reasonable times as may be prescribed by law. The Secretary may sign with the President or Vice President, in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, any documents authorized by the Board of Directors; shall in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary, subject to the control of the Board of Directors; and shall do and perform such other duties as may be assigned to him or her from time to time by the Board of Directors.

Section 7. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall receive, hold and disburse, or cause to be so handled, all funds of the Corporation as provided herein. The Treasurer shall cause the funds of the Corporation to be deposited in such banks, savings and loan associations, trust companies, or other depositories as designated by the Board of Directors and permitted by law; shall keep or cause to be kept, a full account of all monies received and paid out; and shall make a report of the same and of all funds and securities in his or her custody at the annual meeting and at such other times as the President or Board of Directors may require. If required by the Board of Directors, the Treasurer shall give a bond for the faithful discharge of his or her duties in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors shall determine.

Section 8. Removal. Any officer may be removed from office by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of all of the Directors then in office at any regular or special meeting called for that purpose or for nonfeasance, malfeasance or misfeasance, for conduct detrimental to the interests of the Corporation, for lack of sympathy with its objectives or for refusal to render reasonable assistance in carrying out its purposes. Any officer proposed to be removed shall be entitled to at least ten (10) days notice in writing by mail of the meeting of the Board of Directors at which time such removal is to be voted upon, and such officer shall be entitled to appear before and be heard by the Board of Directors at such meeting.

ARTICLE VII

Corporate Employees

Section 1. Executive Director. The Board of Directors of the Corporation may, at the Board's sole discretion, appoint an Executive Director whose appointment and removal shall require a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board. Removal shall be governed by the notice and hearing requirements of Section 8 of Article VI. The Executive Director shall attend to and be responsible for the day to day administration of the Corporation subject only to the general supervision and control of the President, Executive Committee and the Board of Directors, and shall have such supervisory and managerial powers in the conduct of the business of the Corporation as shall be conferred upon him or her by the Board of Directors from time to time or as shall be delegated to the Executive Director with the consent of the Board. The Executive Director shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors but shall not be deemed a member of the Board of Directors or of the Executive Committee or an officer of the Corporation.

Section 2. Other Employees. The Board of Directors may authorize the employment of such additional full or part-time employees as are needed to carry out the programs and business of the Corporation. The Board of Directors shall enter into contracts of employment and set the compensation and other conditions of employment of such employees on behalf of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII

Corporate Seal

The Corporation may, if it so chooses, have a corporate seal.

ARTICLE IX

Amendments

Section 1. The Bylaws. If the Board of Directors, or member(s) holding at least ten percent (10%) of the votes eligible to be voted at a meeting of the members, or twenty-five (25) members request in writing that an amendment be made to these Bylaws, or that a provision be repealed, such request and the text of any proposed revision shall be sent to the Corporation members along with the notice of the next corporate meeting. The proposed revision shall be considered at such meeting and, if approved by a majority of votes present and eligible to be voted at the meeting, the revision shall thereupon become effective.

Section 2. The Articles of Incorporation. Amendments to the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation may be proposed by the Board of Directors, or by written request of member(s) holding at least ten percent (10%) of the votes eligible to be voted at a meeting of the members, or twenty-five (25) members. In the event an amendment is so proposed, the Board of Directors shall adopt a resolution setting forth such amendment and it shall be included with the notice of the next Corporation meeting. On approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the votes present and eligible to be voted at the meeting, the revision shall thereupon become effective.

ARTICLE X

Fiscal Year

Unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors, the fiscal year of the Corporation shall begin on January 1 of each year and end on December 31 of that same year.

ARTICLE XI

Funding

Section 1. Raising of Funds. The Board of Directors shall be primarily responsible for the raising of funds to finance the operations of the Corporation. The Board may accept on behalf of the Corporation any contribution, gift, bequest or devise for the general purposes or for any special purpose of the Corporation. Additionally, the Board of Directors shall be responsible for determining the time and amount of all assessments and dues to be charged to and paid by the members of the Corporation.

Section 2. Distribution of Funds. The Board of Directors shall determine the use, applicability and manner in which all Corporation funds shall be expended.

Section 3. Accounting. The Board of Directors shall be responsible for the preparation of a written operating budget for each fiscal year and an account of the expenditure of funds for the prior fiscal year. The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, have the books and records of the Corporation audited periodically by a qualified independent auditor.

Section 4. Investment. The Corporation shall have the right to retain all or part of any securities or property acquired by it in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by it according to the judgment and discretion of the Directors so long as all investment and reinvestment of funds complies with Section 501 through Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Section 5. Checks, Drafts and Corporation Indebtedness. All checks, drafts or orders for payment of money, notes or other evidence of indebtedness issued in the name of the Corporation shall be signed by such officers or other persons, as shall from time to time be determined by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE XII

Prohibited Activities

No substantial part of the activities of the Corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation shall not participate in or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political campaign on behalf of any candidate for public office. Notwithstanding any other provision of these Bylaws or of the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, the Corporation shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on by a Corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 through Section 528 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or the corresponding provision of any future United States Internal Revenue law).

ARTICLE XIII

Contracts

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Board of Directors may authorize any Director, officer, member, employee or other agent of the Corporation to enter into any contract or execute and deliver any instrument in the name of and on behalf of the Corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to a specific instance. Unless so authorized in these Bylaws or by the Board of Directors, no Director, officer, agent, committee or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the Corporation by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or render it liable for any purpose or for any amount.

ARTICLE XIV

Prohibition Against Sharing in Corporate Funds

No Director, officer, member, agent, employee or any other private individual shall receive, at any time, any of the net earnings from the operations of the Corporation, provided that this shall not prevent payment to any such person of such reasonable compensation for services rendered to or for the Corporation in effecting any of its purposes as are authorized by these Bylaws and as approved by the Board of Directors. Further, no such person shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets upon the dissolution of the Corporation.

ARTICLE XV

Dissolution

This Corporation shall be perpetual but may be dissolved at any time by the action of the Board of Directors and by the members of the Corporation as set forth in the Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act and as that Act may from time to time be amended. All members of the Corporation shall be deemed to have expressly consented and agreed that, upon dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, the assets of the Corporation, after all debts have been satisfied, then remaining in the hands of the Directors, shall be distributed, transferred, conveyed, delivered and paid over exclusively for the purposes of the Corporation in such amounts as the Directors may determine, or as may be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction upon application of the Directors.

ARTICLE XVI

Conflict of Interest

All loans and other transactions shall be conducted at arm's length and shall not violate the proscriptions in the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation, these Bylaws or any other applicable prohibition against the Corporation's use or application of its funds for private benefit. No such loan or transaction shall be entered into if it would result in denial of or loss of tax exempt or partial tax exempt status under Section 503 or 504 of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations as they now exist or as they may be hereafter amended.

The service of individuals as Officers and/or Directors of this Corporation while also serving as Officers and/or Directors of SBC Corporation shall not be deemed a conflict of interest.

ARTICLE XVII

Books and Records

The Corporation shall keep correct and complete books and records of accounts and shall keep minutes of the proceedings of its members, Board of Directors and committees having any of the authority of the Board of Directors, and shall keep a record giving the names and addresses of the members entitled to vote. All books and records of the Corporation may be inspected by any member, or his agent or attorney, for any proper purpose at any reasonable time.

ARTICLE XVIII

Rules of Conduct

The latest revised edition of Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the Corporation members, the Board of Directors and committees when not in conflict with the laws of Texas, the Corporation's Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

ARTICLE XIX

Indemnification

The Corporation shall indemnify every Director, officer, agent and employee of the Corporation and his or her heirs, executors and administrators against all expenses reasonably incurred by such person in connection with any action, suit or proceeding to which he or she may be a party by reason of his or her having been a Director, officer, agent or employee of the Corporation to the full extent permitted by law, provided such person shall not have been guilty of negligence or misconduct in respect of the matter in which indemnity is sought.

GRASSLAND ESTATES HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION
Amendment to Bylaws Article 5, Section 1 (General Powers)
Amended June 15, 2004

Bylaws article 5, Section 1 (General Powers) Amendment:

Section 1 (General Powers): The activities, affairs and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by a Board of Directors who shall have and may exercise all the powers of the Corporation (including the power to enforce the Restrictions and Covenants applicable to Grassland Estates subdivision and to adopt rules and regulations setting forth the procedures to be followed in connection with such enforcement as outlined below) except as otherwise reserved to the member by law, by the Articles of Incorporation or by these bylaws.

If the Owner of any home, Lot or building site fails to abide by the restrictions, covenants, stipulations, obligations or provisions applicable to Grassland Estates subdivision, and if such failure or default continues uncured for ten (10) days after written notice thereof mailed to the Owner of the home, Lot or building site at the Owner's last known address, the Association may impose monthly fines upon the property in amounts determined by the Association Board of Directors or the Association or its agent(s), may go upon such home, Lot or building site and correct the default, and the Association shall not be guilty of any manner of trespass or liability to the Owner in any respect as a result thereof. The Owner shall be obligated to reimburse said Association for all expenses incurred by it in performing such work, and the amount to be reimbursed shall bear interest at the rate of one and one half percent (1½%) per month (but not in excess of the highest lawful rate) from the date such work is performed or caused to be performed by the Association until the Association is reimbursed by the Owner therefore. Monthly fines imposed by the Association Board of Directors shall be defined and promulgated annually by the Board of Directors. A separate schedule of offenses and fines shall be published at least annually by the Board of Directors and can be revised at the annual meeting as required. Any default on the payment of the reimbursement or fines imposed by the Association Board of Directors shall be secured by a lien against the Lot or building site in the same manner as the Assessments (dues) or Special Assessments.

Fine Rate Schedule – Deed Restrictions Violations vs. fines – Effective August 15, 2004

Reference: Bylaws Article 5, Section 1 (General Powers).

The Deed Restrictions violations vs. fines schedule must be promulgated to the community per Bylaws Article 5, Section 1, Paragraph 2 (Effective Date August 15, 2004). Per this requirement the Deed Restriction Violation vs. Fines schedule is set by the Board at **\$100.00 per month for all Deed Restriction Violations.**